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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Property NSW, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In my opinion, the financial statements:
•

•

give a true and fair view of the financial position of Property NSW as at 30 June 2017, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards
are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and
the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.
I am independent of Property NSW in accordance with the requirements of the:
•

Australian Auditing Standards

•

Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.
Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:
•

providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an AuditorGeneral

•

mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies

•

precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

The Chief Executive Officer’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the PF&A Act, and for such
internal control as the Chief Executive Officer determines necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Executive Officer must assess Property NSW’s ability
to continue as a going concern except where Property NSW will be dissolved by an Act of Parliament
or otherwise cease operations. The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and the appropriateness of using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objectives are to:
•

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

•

issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based
on the financial statements.
A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf.
The description forms part of my auditor’s report.
My opinion does not provide assurance:
•

that Property NSW carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

•

about the assumptions used in formulating the budget figures disclosed in the financial
statements

•

about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

•

about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Weini Liao
Director, Financial Audit Services

22 September 2017
SYDNEY

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Start of Audited Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017
Note

Actual
2017
$'000

Budget
2017
$'000

Actual
2016
$'000

2(a)
2(b)
2(c)
2(d)
2(e)

37,988
493,896
16,272
7,725
5,974

28,353
480,033
15,047
5,975

25,672
471,419
12,888
200,697
6,341

561,855

529,408

717,017

3(a)

541,276

505,968

497,194

3(b)
3(c)

6,082
177,660

5,865
171,760

6,342
26,241

3(d)

550

550

550

725,568

684,143

530,327

168
20,509

-

1,468
(443)

184,390

154,735

(185,665)

97,139

-

82,041

Total Other Comprehensive Income

97,139

-

82,041

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

281,529

154,735

Expenses Excluding Losses
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services Expense
Other Operating Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation
Grants and Subsidies
Finance Costs
Total Expenses Excluding Losses
Revenue
Sale of Goods and Services
Investment Revenue
Grants and Contributions
Other Revenue
Total Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal
Other Gains/(Losses)

4
5

Net Result
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be Reclassified to Net Result:
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Property, Plant and
Equipment Revaluation Surplus

17(b)(i)

[The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements]

(103,624)

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2017
Note

Actual
2017
$'000

Budget
2017
$'000

Actual
2016
$'000

6(a)
7
9

83,469
121,495
87,973

39,331
70,465
30,400

108,891
76,114
52,086

292,937

140,196

237,091

230,742
958,663
5,716
7,400

214,702
738,835
6,003
7,000

226,949
729,526
1,893
6,450

Total Non-Current Assets

1,202,521

966,540

964,818

TOTAL ASSETS

1,495,458

1,106,736

1,201,909

32,624
96,371
8,497

9,986
38,114
10,358

23,669
866
103,549
8,025

137,492

58,458

136,109

9,480
34,398
118,362
54,757

34,398
107,334
59,470

7,687
34,398
116,380
57,865

Total Non-Current Liabilities

216,997

201,202

216,330

TOTAL LIABILITIES

354,489

259,660

352,439

1,140,969

847,076

849,470

918,081
222,888

684,756
162,320

667,259
182,211

1,140,969

847,076

849,470

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Non-Current Assets Held For Sale
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Receivables
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Other

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other Liabilities

7
8
10
11

13
14
15
16

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other Liabilities

13
14
15
16

NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Accumulated Funds
Asset Revaluation Reserve
TOTAL EQUITY

17(b)

[The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements]

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017
Asset

Asset

2017

2017

$'000

$'000

Total
Equity
2017
$'000

Opening Balance

667,259

182,211

849,470

788,162

Net Result for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income:
Transfer of Asset Revaluation Reserve
on Disposed Assets
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Property, Plant
and Equipment Revaluation Surplus

184,390

-

184,390

(185,665)

Note

17(b)(i)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Total Transactions with Owners as Owners
Closing Balance

Revaluation

Funds

Reserve

56,462

Total Other Comprehensive Income

Transactions with Owners as Owners
Financial Distributions
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets from
Equity Transfers

Accumulated

(56,462)

Accumulated

Revaluation

Funds

Reserve

2016

2016

$'000

$'000

Total
Equity
2016
$'000

100,170

888,332

-

(185,665)

-

-

-

-

97,139

-

82,041

82,041

-

-

97,139

56,462

40,677

97,139

82,041

82,041

240,852

40,677

281,529

(185,665)

82,041

(103,624)

17(a)

(17,017)

-

(17,017)

(66,589)

-

(66,589)

17(c)

26,987

-

26,987

131,351

-

131,351

9,970

-

9,970

64,762

-

64,762

918,081

222,888

1,140,969

667,259

182,211

849,470

[The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements]

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017
Actual
2017
$'000

Budget
2017
$'000

Actual
2016
$'000

(35,481)
(4,839)
(7,705)
(524,452)
(572,477)

(28,353)
(4,839)
(548,318)
(581,510)

(26,081)
(4,929)
(200,202)
(466,753)
(697,965)

522,291
6,242
177,660
706,193

503,699
6,297
171,760
681,756

495,673
6,388
26,241
528,302

133,716

100,246

(169,663)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

(160,002)
18,747

(175,801)
24,068

(9,165)
89,707

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(141,255)

(151,733)

80,542

(866)
(17,017)

(866)
(4,046)

(1,074)
(66,589)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(17,883)

(4,912)

(67,663)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

(25,422)

(56,399)

(156,784)

108,891

95,730

265,675

83,469

39,331

108,891

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Personnel Services
Finance Costs
Grants and Subsidies
Other
Total Payments
Receipts
Sale of Goods and Services
Interest Received
Grants and Contributions
Total Receipts
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings and advances
Financial Distributions to the State Government

6(b)

1(l)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

6(a)

[The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements]

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Reporting Entity
Property NSW (formerly Government Property NSW) was established under the Property NSW Act 2006 (formerly the
Government Property NSW Act 2006 ) to improve the management of the NSW Government's owned and leased real
property portfolio and to become a central agency with a whole-of-government focus on the acquisition, disposition and
better utilisation of real property assets. An amendment to the Government Property NSW Act 2006 on 25 October 2016
changed the name of the Act to the Property NSW Act 2006 (the Act) and also changed the name of the Government
Property NSW to Property NSW (PNSW). PNSW commenced operations on 1 September 2006 and is domiciled in
Australia. Its principal business address is Bligh House, 4-6 Bligh Street, Sydney NSW 2000. PNSW is a not-for-profit
entity as profit is not its principal objective. PNSW is consolidated as part of the NSW Total State Sector Accounts.
Under the Act, PNSW is unable to employ staff. However, to enable it to exercise its functions, PNSW can obtain
personnel services from Government agencies who are able to engage staff under Part 4 of the Government Sector
Employment Act 2013 . During 2016-17, personnel services were provided by the Department of Finance, Services and
Innovation (DFSI). The DFSI, a principal department, is a separate reporting entity and does not control PNSW for financial
reporting purposes.
These financial statements have been authorised for issue by PNSW's Chief Executive Officer on 20 September 2017.
(b) Basis of Preparation
PNSW's financial statements are general-purpose financial statements which have been prepared on a "going concern"
basis and in accordance with:
(i) applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations);
(ii) the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015 ; and
(iii) Financial Reporting Directions mandated by the Treasurer.
Property, Plant and Equipment, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Other Non-Current Asset are measured at fair value.
Other financial statement items are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except where specified
otherwise.
The accrual basis of accounting has been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements, except for cash flow
information.
Judgements, key assumptions and estimations made by management are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial
statements.
All amounts are rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars ($'000) and are expressed in Australian currency.
(c) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements and accompanying notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian
Accounting Interpretations.
(d) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, in accordance with Treasury’s
Mandate to not-for-profit NSW general government sector entities.
(e) Insurance
PNSW's insurance activities are conducted through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of self-insurance for
Government entities. The expense (premium) is determined by the Fund Manager based on past claim experience. Properties
owned by PNSW are insured for their replacement value. Management reviews the insurance coverage each year.

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that:
(i) the amount of GST incurred by PNSW as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense;
(ii) receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included; and
(iii) commitment amounts disclosed in the financial statements include the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the Australian Taxation Office.
Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. However, the GST components of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office are
classified as operating cash flows.
(g) Income Recognition
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration or contribution received or receivable. Additional comments
regarding the accounting policies for the recognition of income are discussed below.
(i) Operating Lease Income
Operating lease income is recognised in accordance with AASB 117 "Leases". Lease income from operating leases
where PNSW is the lessor is recognised as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rental income is recognised as income in the period in which it is earned.
(ii) Finance Lease Income
Finance lease income is recognised in accordance with AASB 117 "Leases". Lease income from finance leases where
PNSW is the lessor is recognised as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the lease period so
as to allocate finance income over the lease term on a systematic and rational basis. This income allocation is based
on a pattern reflecting a constant period return on PNSW’s net investment in the lease.
The estimated unguaranteed residual value used in computing PNSW's gross investment in each lease is
reviewed regularly. If there has been a reduction in the estimated unguaranteed residual value, the income allocation
over the lease term is revised and any reduction in respect of amounts accrued is recognised immediately. Contingent
rent from finance leases as lessor is recognised as income in the period in which it is earned.
(iii) Fees for Services Rendered
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when the service is provided or by reference to the stage of
completion (based on labour hours incurred to date).
(iv) Interest Income
Revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 "Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement".
(v) Grants and Contributions
Grants and contributions are recognised as income when PNSW obtains control over the assets comprising the
grant or contribution, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to PNSW, and the amount of the grant or
contribution can be measured reliably. Control is normally obtained upon the receipt of cash.

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Income Recognition (Continued)
(vi) Emerging Asset Revenue
In accordance with TPP 06-08 "Accounting for Privately Financed Projects", the Opera House Car Park is an emerging
asset which PNSW has a right to receive in the financial year 2042-43 under a privately financed infrastructure
arrangement. The right is being recognised as revenue and added to the asset value over the term of the car park
concession. Any periodic revaluations are accounted for in accordance with AASB 116 "Property, Plant and Equipment".
(h) Assets
(i) Acquisitions of Assets
Acquisition of assets is recognised when the risks and rewards of the asset have passed to the buyer. On property
asset, this usually coincides with when the legal title passes to the buyer, which is upon settlement of a contract.
The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recording of all acquisitions of assets controlled by PNSW.
Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire the asset
at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially
recognised in accordance with the requirements of other Australian Accounting Standards.
Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised at their fair value at the date of
acquisition (see also assets transferred as a result of an equity transfer (Note 1(m)).
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date.
Where payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price equivalent; i.e. deferred
payment amount is effectively discounted over the period of credit.
(ii) Capitalisation Thresholds
Plant and equipment, and intangible assets costing $5,000 and above individually (or forming part of a network costing
more than $5,000) are capitalised.
Property expenditure that gives rise to an effective and material increase in the future economic benefits of the property
to PNSW is capitalised. The general threshold for property expenditure capitalisation is $30,000.
(iii) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Physical non-current assets are valued in accordance with the 'Valuation of Physical Non-Current Assets at Fair Value'
Policy and Guidelines Paper (TPP 14-01). This policy adopts fair value in accordance with AASB 13 "Fair Value
Measurement", AASB 116 "Property, Plant and Equipment" and AASB 140 "Investment Property".
Property, plant and equipment is measured at the highest and best use by market participants that is physically
possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. The highest and best use must be available at a period that is not
remote and take into account the characteristics of the asset being measured, including any socio-political restrictions
imposed by government. In most cases, after taking into account these considerations, the highest and best use is
the existing use. In limited circumstances, the highest and best use may be a feasible alternative use, where there are
no restrictions on use or where there is a feasible higher restricted alternative use.
Fair value of property, plant and equipment is based on a market participants’ perspective, using valuation techniques
(market approach, cost approach, income approach) that maximise relevant observable inputs and minimise unobservable
inputs. PNSW revalues each class of property, plant and equipment on annual basis to ensure that the carrying amount
of each asset in the class does not differ materially from its fair value at reporting date (Note 8(b)(i) and 8(b)(ii)).

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Assets (Continued)
(iii) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
Non-specialised assets with short useful lives are measured at depreciated historical cost, as an approximation of fair
value.
When revaluing assets, any balances of accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date in respect of those assets are
credited to the asset accounts to which they relate. The net asset accounts are then increased or decreased by the
revaluation increments or decrements.
Revaluation increments are credited directly to revaluation reserve, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses
a revaluation decrement in respect of that class of asset previously recognised as an expense in the net result, the
increment is recognised immediately as revenue in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent that a
credit balance exists in the revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of assets, they are debited directly to the
revaluation reserve.
As a not-for-profit entity, revaluation increments and decrements are offset against one another within a class of
non-current assets, but not otherwise.
Where an asset that has previously been revalued is disposed of, any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve
in respect of that asset is transferred to accumulated funds.
(iv) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
As a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units, impairment under AASB 136 "Impairment of Assets" is unlikely
to arise. As property, plant and equipment is carried at fair value, impairment can only arise in the rare circumstances
where the costs of disposal are material. Specifically, impairment is unlikely for not-for-profit entities given that AASB
136 modifies the recoverable amount test for non-cash generating assets of not-for-profit entities to the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and depreciated replacement cost, where depreciated replacement cost is also fair value.
PNSW assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, PNSW estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.
As a not for-profit entity, an impairment loss is recognised in the net result to the extent the impairment loss exceeds
the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset.
(v) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis for all depreciable non-current assets so as to write off the
depreciable amount of each asset as it is consumed over its useful life to PNSW. Estimates of remaining useful
lives are made on a regular basis for all assets, with annual reassessments for major items.
PNSW's buildings are separately componentised into the structure, air conditioning units and lifts where it can
be determined that these components:
(a) physically exist; and
(b) are material enough to justify separate tracking; and
(c) are capable of having a reliable value attributed to them; and
(d) have differing estimated useful lives to the extent that failure to depreciate them separately would result in a
material difference in the annual depreciation expense for PNSW.

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Assets (Continued)
(v) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The starting useful lives of PNSW's items of property, plant and equipment are based on the following:

Buildings (Not Componentised)
Buildings (Componentised)
Structure
Air Conditioning Units
Lifts
Computer Equipment and Software
Furniture and Fittings
Plant and Equipment and Office Equipment
Leasehold Improvements

2017
Years

2016
Years

40

40

40
20
30
3
10
5
6

40
20
30
3
10
5
6

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful life. Heritage buildings are
depreciated in accordance with the above useful life ranges. Finance Lease Assets are depreciated over the period of the
lease. Fine Arts and Heritage items located within owned buildings are not depreciated as they do not have a limited
useful life. These items are however subject to an annual impairment test to identify any impairment.
In accordance with AASB 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations", any assets held for sale
are not depreciated. Land is also not depreciated as land is not a depreciable asset.
(vi) Restoration Costs
The present value of the expected cost for the restoration or cost of dismantling of an asset after its use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
(vii) Maintenance
Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to the
replacement of a part or component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated.
(viii) Leased Assets
A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially
all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased assets, and operating leases under which the lessor
effectively retains all such risks and benefits.
(a) Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are recognised, at the commencement of the lease, at an
amount equal to the fair value of the leased property, or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Statement of Financial Position as Finance Lease Liabilities
under Borrowings (Note 14). Lease payments are allocated between the principal component of the lease liability and
the interest expense.
After recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease is measured at a
revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Finance leases as lessor in which substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to legal ownership are transferred
by PNSW to the lessee, are classified in the Statement of Financial Position as Finance Lease Receivables
under Receivables (Note 7(b)). Assets held under a finance lease arrangement are presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Lessee finance lease payments are treated by PNSW as
repayment of principal and finance income over the lease term to reimburse and reward PNSW’s investment and
services. Lease payments relating to the period, excluding costs for services, are applied against the gross investment
in the lease to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income.

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Assets (Continued)
(viii) Leased Assets (Continued)
(b) Operating Leases
Operating lease payments are recognised in the Net Result and charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease incentives received which are less than $0.5 million are recognised directly in the Net Result in the year in which
they are received. Lease incentives received which are greater than this amount are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position and are allocated to the Net Result over the lease term (Notes 16(a) and 2(b)).
In accordance with AASB 137 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", in the case of an onerous
contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.
The terms of occupancy for government agencies occupying space in PNSW owned premises is dictated in the
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between PNSW and the agency. The provisions of the MoU are generally
based on market place conditions applicable to office buildings in commercial centres.
The term of the tenancy agreement is indefinite with the agency required to give 18 months notice prior to vacating.
Termination of part tenancies is permitted subject to a variety of conditions being satisfied.
Rent reviews for owned government office buildings are conducted at two yearly intervals to update rentals to current
market rates. There are no ratchet clauses in place and tenants are charged an effective rental, which takes into
consideration incentives available in the market place at a particular point in time.
Tenants will makegood the premises by undertaking a physical makegood or negotiating a financial settlement with
PNSW.
(ix) Intangible Assets
PNSW recognises intangible assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to PNSW and
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Where an asset is
acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
All research costs are expensed. Development costs are only capitalised when certain criteria are met.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair value only if there is an active market. As there is no active market
for PNSW’s intangible assets, the assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation.
PNSW's intangible assets (computer software) are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of three (3)
years.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is recognised as
an impairment loss.
(x) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and in hand, restricted
cash and other short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Assets (Continued)
(xi) Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face
value. Subsequent measurement is an amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for any
impairment of receivables. Any changes are recognised in the Net Result when impaired, derecognised or
through the amortisation process.
Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. Such receivables, which generally have 30-day terms, are recognised and carried at original
invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts.
(xii) Impairment of Financial Assets
All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss, are subject to an annual review for
impairment. An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that PNSW will not be able
to collect all amounts due.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the allowance is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the Net Result for the year.
Any reversals of impairment losses are reversed through the Net Result for the year, where there is objective evidence.
Reversals of impairment losses of financial assets carried at amortised cost cannot result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had there not been an impairment loss.
(xiii) Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if
PNSW transfers the financial asset:
- where substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred; or
- where PNSW has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, if PNSW has not retained control.
Where PNSW has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control,
the asset is recognised to the extent of PNSW’s continuing involvement in the asset.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
(xiv) Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
PNSW has certain non-current assets classified as held for sale, where their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction, not through continuing use. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale are recognised at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. These assets are not depreciated while they are
classified as held for sale.
(xv) Other Assets
Other assets are recognised on a cost basis.

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Liabilities

(i) Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to PNSW and other amounts. Payables are
recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. Subsequent measurement is at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Short-term payables with no stated interest rate are measured at
the original invoice amount where the effect of discounting is immaterial.
(ii) Borrowings
PNSW's borrowings represent finance lease liabilities. The finance lease liabilities are determined in accordance with
AASB 117 "Leases".
(iii) Provisions
(a) Personnel Services Provision
PNSW receives personnel services from the Department of Finance, Services and Innovation (DFSI). The DFSI is not
a Special Purpose Service Entity and does not control PNSW under this arrangement (Note 1(a)). As PNSW is not
an employer, the disclosure requirements of AASB 119 "Employee Benefits" in respect of employee benefits do not
apply.
(b) Land Remediation Provision
Where PNSW has a legal or constructive obligation to remediate an asset such as land, a provision is recognised to
reflect the net present value of the estimated future costs required to settle PNSW's remediation obligations (Note
15(a)). At the same time, where PNSW owns the underlying asset, the amount of the provision is capitalised and
added to the cost of the asset.
Periodic changes in the provision are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of AASB Interpretation 1
"Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities" and the revaluation model requirements of
AASB 116 "Property, Plant and Equipment" for not-for-profit entities.
The discount applied to recognise the time value of money is unwound over the life of the provision. Any incremental
increase resulting from the unwinding of the discount is recognised under Finance Costs within the Net Result
in the reporting period in which it occurs.
Other increases or decreases in the provision resulting from periodic changes to the estimated timing or amount of
future remediation costs, or changes to the discount rate used, alter the revaluation increase or decrease previously
recognised on the underlying asset. An increase in the provision is recognised in the Net Result except to the
extent that it reverses any Asset Revaluation Reserve balance in respect of the underlying class of assets. A decrease
in the provision is credited to the Asset Revaluation Reserve except to the extent that it reverses any previous increase
recognised in the Net Result in respect the underlying class of assets. Any changes to the Asset Revaluation
Reserve resulting from these provision increases or decreases are separately identified and disclosed within Other
Comprehensive Income.
(c) Other Provisions
Other provisions are recognised when PNSW has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation as at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties that surround the events and
circumstances that affect the provision. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision amount is
calculated as the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. The discount rate used
in the calculation is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The rate does not reflect risks for which future cash flow estimates have been adjusted.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j)

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either In the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
A number of PNSW’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring fair value, the valuation technique used maximises the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. Under AASB 13 "Fair Value Measurement", PNSW
categorises, for disclosure purposes, the valuation techniques based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:
- Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical assets / liabilities that PNSW can access at the measurement
date.
- Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3 – inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
PNSW recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred. Refer to Note 12 and Note 20 for further disclosures regarding fair value measurements of financial
and non-financial assets.
(k) Equity and Reserves
(i) Accumulated Funds
The category "Accumulated Funds" includes all current and prior period retained funds. All financial distributions are
made directly from Accumulated Funds.
(ii) Asset Revaluation Reserve
The total asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current
property plant and equipment and finance leases. This accords with PNSW's policy on the Revaluation of
Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 1(h)(iii)). No financial distributions are made from the Asset Revaluation Reserve.
(l)

Financial Distributions

As a Government business, PNSW operates under the State Government's Commercial Policy Framework. A key
component of this Framework is the requirement to make financial distributions to owners. In PNSW's case, its owner is the
State Government. All payments of financial distributions are made to the Crown Finance Entity. The nature and calculation of
the required annual distributions is determined by NSW Treasury Policy and Guidelines Paper, TPP 14-04 "Financial
Distribution Policy for Government Businesses". The distributions made by PNSW include normal distribution payments from
cash operating surpluses and capital repatriations, from the sale of its own properties.
Normal distributions are payments made from current year cash surpluses. Treasury policy states that a government
business should not retain any cash in excess of its requirements for working capital, in addition to a contingency allowance
for an appropriate level of financial flexibility. Funds in excess of these requirements are returned to the State Government.
Capital repatriations are additional one-off payments which represent capital repayments of the State Government’s equity
in PNSW. In PNSW’s case, capital repatriation payments represent the full return of the net proceeds (ie. total proceeds
less costs) of all PNSW-owned property sales (Note 17(a)).
Payments made to the Restart NSW Fund (NSW Government's dedicated infrastructure fund) from the net sale proceeds of
property assets sold by PNSW is recognised as contribution expense. The payments are based on a NSW Government
decision that the net sale proceeds of property assets sold by DFSI related entities are to be paid directly into the Restart
NSW Fund from 1 July 2015 onward except where the NSW Government has made a separate decision to allocate the net
sale proceeds to fund other programs.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Equity Transfers
The establishment of new statutory bodies or transfer of net assets between agencies as a result of an administrative
restructure, transfers of programs/functions and parts thereof between NSW public sector agencies are designated as a
contribution by owners and recognised as an adjustment to Accumulated Funds. This treatment is in accordance with
Treasury Policy and Guidelines Paper TPP 09-3 "Contributions By Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities" and
is consistent with Interpretation 1038 "Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities" and Australian
Accounting Standards. Transfers arising from an administrative restructure between government agencies are recognised at
the amount at which the asset was recognised by the transferor government agency immediately prior to the restructure. In
most cases this will approximate fair value. All other equity transfers are recognised at fair value.
(n) Budgeted Amounts
The budgeted amounts are drawn from the original budgeted financial statements presented to Parliament in respect of the
reporting period. Subsequent amendments to the original budget (e.g. adjustment for transfer of functions between entities
as a result of administrative arrangements orders) are not reflected in the budgeted amounts. Major variances between the
original budgeted amounts and the actual amounts disclosed in the primary financial statements are explained in Note 21.
(o) Comparative Information
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information is disclosed in
respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements.
(p) Changes in Accounting Policy, including New or Revised Australian Accounting Standards
(i) Effective for the First Time in 2016-17
The accounting policies applied in 2016-17 are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as a result of
the first time adoption of AASB 124 "Related Party Disclosures".
The application of AASB 124 has no impact on the transactions and balances recognised in the financial statements
however the standard requires PNSW, a not-for-profit entity, to disclose material transactions and outstanding balances
between PNSW and its related parties. The definition of a "related party" in AASB 124 is extensive and it includes
close family members of individuals in related party relationships and entities controlled or jointly controlled by Key
Management Personnel (KMP). KMP are related parties with separate disclosure requirements.
(ii) Issued but Not Yet Effective
NSW public sector entities are not permitted to early adopt new Australian Accounting Standards, unless Treasury
determines otherwise.
The following new Australian Accounting Standards, excluding standards not considered applicable or material to PNSW,
have not been applied and are not yet effective. The possible impact of these standards in the period of initial application
includes:
- AASB 16 "Leases", has application from 1 January 2019. This standard generally requires Lessee to recognise a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability at a lease's commencement date except for short term and low value asset leases.
The requirements for lessor accounting have been carried forward from AASB 117 largely unchanged. PNSW believes this
standard will significantly increase the value of PNSW's total assets and liabilities and affect the composition of PNSW's
revenue and expenses. At 30 June 2017, PNSW is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 16.
- AASB 15, AASB 2014-5, AASB 2015-8 and AASB 2016-3 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers", has application
from 1 January 2018. PNSW believes this standard will impact on the timing recognition of certain revenues given the
core principle of the new standard requires revenue to be recognised when the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at the transaction price (as opposed to stage of completion of the transaction). The model features a
contract-based five step analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.
- AASB 9 "Financial Instruments", has application from 1 January 2018 and comprises changes to improve and simplify
the approach for classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities. The new AASB 9 includes
revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and supersedes AASB
9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 (December 2010). The change is not expected to materially impact the financial
statements.
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2.

EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES

(a) Personnel Services Expense (i)
Salaries and Wages (Including Recreation Leave)
Contractors
Voluntary Redundancies
Superannuation (Defined Benefit Plans)
Superannuation (Defined Contribution Plans)
Long Service Leave
Worker's Compensation Insurance
Payroll Tax and Fringe Benefits Tax

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

25,017
6,111
2,610
(50)
1,635
998
(93)
1,760
37,988

14,652
5,803
2,641
61
928
586
55
946
25,672

(i) The Personnel Services Expense is the expense incurred by PNSW on personnel services provided to it by the
Department of Finance, Services and Innovation (DFSI). Under the Property NSW Act 2006 , PNSW is unable to employ
staff (Note 1(a)).
(b) Other Operating Expenses

Property Head Lease Expense (i)
Other Property Related Expenses (ii)
Other Operating Expenses (iii)

(i) Property Head Lease Expense

Minimum Lease Payments (a)
Rental Expenses Arising from Sub-Leases (b)
Contingent Rentals (c)
Less Amortisation of Lessor Lease Incentives (Note 16(a))

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

456,533
25,221
12,142
493,896

434,409
26,200
10,810
471,419

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

381,552
70,055
13,206
464,813
(8,280)
456,533

365,798
65,119
12,719
443,636
(9,227)
434,409

(a) The majority of head leased office accommodation property is sub-leased to government agencies. The terms of
the operating head leases generally range from 3 to 15 years with the option of renewal of further terms. The lease
agreements allow Lessors the right to review rents on specified dates.
(b) Expenditure for recurrent outgoings on property leased by PNSW as lessee includes maintenance, electricity,
cleaning and expenses for common areas and public risk. This is recovered from sub-lessees.
(c) Contingent rentals are variations due to market rental reviews and changes to the Consumer Price Index between
the actual lease and the amounts of minimum lease payments determined at the inception of the lease.
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2.

EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES (CONTINUED)

(b) Other Operating Expenses (Continued)
(ii) Other Property Related Expenses

Management Fees (a)
Gas and Electricity
Maintenance (b)
Cleaning
Rates and Levies
Security
Valuations
Bad Debts
Other (c)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

7,211
2,797
6,194
3,119
225
1,162
486
203
3,824
25,221

7,124
2,236
7,737
2,525
193
882
268
43
5,192
26,200

(a) Management Fees represent fees paid to external service providers for property management services of owned and
leased properties.
(b) Maintenance expenses relate to owned properties and include ad-hoc and scheduled maintenance services on
lifts, air conditioning units, fire protection systems, plumbing, electrical and other areas. There was no personnel
services maintenance expense in 2016-17 (nil in 2015-16).
(c) Items classified as Other include telephone, fire safety, legal, building manager costs, gardening and sundry
charges incurred on properties owned by PNSW.
(iii) Other Operating Expenses

Audit Fees (Audit of Financial Statements)
Legal Fees
Consultants
Office Accommodation Expenses
Other Contractors
Service Fees (a)
Computer Costs
Training and Development
Other (b)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

210
119
555
2,365
2,218
4,506
519
333
1,317
12,142

198
164
253
2,290
2,119
3,990
370
185
1,241
10,810

(a) Service Fees include fees charged by GovConnectNSW for shared transactional services, by DFSI for corporate
services provided under the DFSI Corporate Operating Model arrangements and by Land and Property Information for
system hosting services provided in relation to the Property Register.
(b) Items classified as Other include advertising, conferences, telephone, printing, stationery, travel, removal and other
sundry charges.
(c) Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 8(b))
Depreciation of Finance Lease Assets (Note 8(b))
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 10(b))

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

11,756
3,391
1,125
16,272

8,911
2,839
1,138
12,888
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2.

EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES (CONTINUED)

(d) Grants and Subsidies

Grants to the Museum of Contemporary Art (i)
Contributions to the Restart NSW Fund (ii)
Property Transferred to Local Government (Note 8(b))

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

2,261
5,444
20
7,725

200,202
495
200,697

(i) Grants of $2.3 million in 2016-17 (nil in 2015-16) represent payments made to the Museum of Contemporary Art to
replace the existing rental guarantee subsidies paid by Place Management NSW pursuant to its lease to Museum of
Contemporary Art.
(ii) Contributions of $5.4 million in 2016-17 ($200.2 million in 2015-16) represent payments made to the Restart NSW Fund
(NSW Government's dedicated infrastructure fund) from the net sale proceeds of property assets sold by PNSW. The
payments are based on a NSW Government decision that the net sale proceeds of property assets sold by DFSI
related entities are to be paid directly into the Restart NSW Fund from 1 July 2015 onward except where the NSW
Government has made a separate decision to allocate the net sale proceeds to fund other programs.
The significant decrease in contributions to the Restart NSW Fund over 2015-16 has resulted mainly from the inclusion of
$169.9 million of net sale proceeds in 2015-16 from properties settled in late June 2015.

(e) Finance Costs

3.

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Finance Lease Interest Charges (Note 14(a))
Unwinding of Discount Rate on Make Good Provision (Note 15(b))
Unwinding of Discount Rate on Land Remediation Provision (Note 15(a))

4,839
5
1,130
5,974

4,929
7
1,405
6,341

REVENUE

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

511,952
29,324
541,276

486,734
10,460
497,194

(a) Sale of Goods and Services
Property Rental Income - Operating Lease Income (i)
Fees for Services Rendered

The significant increase in fees for services revenue over 2015-16 has resulted mainly from recharges from PNSW to other
Property and Advisory Group (PAG) entities in 2016-17. PAG is a group under DFSI encompassing the entities of
Property NSW (PNSW), Place Management NSW (PMNSW), Teacher Housing Authority (THA), Luna Park Reserve
Trust (LPRT), Waste Asset Management Corporation (WAMC) and the DFSI divisions of Public Works Facilities
Management and Valuation Services, formerly part of Land and Property Information (LPI).

(i) Property Rental Income - Operating Lease Income
Owned Property Income
Leased Property Income
Less: Amortisation of Lessee Lease Incentives (Note 7(c))

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

42,366
477,866
(8,280)
511,952

40,728
455,233
(9,227)
486,734

33,752
16,772
567
51,091

43,039
22,045
778
65,862

Future Minimum Lease Receipts under Non-Cancellable Operating Leases as Lessor
Receivable within one year
Receivable later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Receivable later than 5 years
Total Including GST

The above represents future minimum lease receipts on PNSW's owned properties. Future minimum lease receipts
as at 30 June 2017 include GST payable of $4.6 million ($6.0 million at 30 June 2016).
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3.

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(b) Investment Revenue

Property Finance Lease Income ((i) and Note 7(b))
Interest Earned (ii)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

5,585
497
6,082

5,547
795
6,342

(i) Income from finance leases as lessor includes contingent rent of $0.8 million in 2016-17 ($0.8 million in 2015-16).
Contingent rent is calculated as the difference between the current lease payments and the minimum lease payments
which were determined at the initial recognition of the finance lease arrangement.
(ii) Interest earned is received on cash set aside for remediation on land acquired by the Crown from BHP Billiton in 2002.
The cash is held in a separate PNSW bank account within the NSW Treasury Banking System.
(c) Grants and Contributions

State Government - Recurrent Contribution (i)
State Government - Capital Contribution (ii)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

7,964
169,696
177,660

5,668
20,573
26,241

(i) PNSW receives an annual recurrent contribution from the State Government for a range of non-commercial professional
services undertaken which provide a whole-of-government benefit. These services include agency property portfolio
reviews, whole-of-town studies, property policy implementation and Property Register administration.
(ii) PNSW's approved Capital Program is fully funded by the State Government by way an annual capital contribution. The
Program includes major works such as refurbishment, compliance and other asset renewal works included under
PNSW's Property Refurbishment Program. The significant increase in State Government - Capital Contribution over
2015-16 has resulted mainly from the receipt of capital grant to fund the purchase of lands from another NSW
government entity in 2016-17.
(d) Other Revenue

Emerging Asset Revenue ((i) and Note 11)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

550
550

550
550

(i) In accordance with TPP 06-08 "Accounting for Privately Financed Projects", the Opera House Car Park is an emerging
asset which PNSW has a right to receive in 2043 under a privately financed infrastructure arrangement. The right
is being recognised as revenue and added to the asset value over the term of the carpark concession (Note 11).

4.

GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL

Net Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Written Down Value (Note 9(b))
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

2017
$'000
18,747
(18,579)
168

2016
$'000
89,707
(88,239)
1,468
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5.

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES)

Net Gain on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment ((i) and Note 8(b))
Net Gain/(Loss) due to Increase in Remediation Provision from Revised Estimate
of Liability (Note 15(a))
Impairment Loss on Work in Progress - Project Costs Recoverable
Impairment Loss on Non-Current Assets Held for Sale (Note 9(b))
Impairment Loss on Intangible Assets (Note 10(b))
Impairment Loss on Work in Progress - Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 8(b))
Other Gains/(Losses)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

23,779

6,959

380
(834)
(2,746)
(70)
20,509

(6,820)
(167)
(21)
(394)
(443)

(i) A net gain on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment of $23.8 million ($6.9 million in 2015-16) was recognised in
the Net Result as it reversed revaluation decrements of the same class of assets previously recognised in the Net
Result.

6.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

54,485

64,941

21,823
7,161
83,469

39,460
4,490
108,891

(a) Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at Bank and On Hand
Operating Funds
Restricted Cash:
Land Remediation Funds (i)
Agency Property Transaction Monies (ii)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

(i) A total of $21.8 million ($39.5 million at 30 June 2016) is set aside and can only be used for remediation on Newcastle
lands acquired by the Crown from BHP Billiton in 2002.
(ii) A total of $7.2 million ($4.5 million at 30 June 2016) was held "on trust" on behalf of other government agencies and can
only be used for property acquisition and divestment transactions in progress, negotiations for which were being
undertaken by PNSW under formal agreement with those agencies (Note 13).
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand, cash at bank and "restricted cash".
Refer to Note 20 for details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from financial instruments.
(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash Flows from Operating
Activities to Net Result

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities

133,716

(169,663)

Non Cash Revenue/(Expenses):
Emerging Asset Increment/(Decrement) (Note 3(d))
Depreciation and Amortisation (Note 2(c))
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets (Note 4)
Other Gains/(Losses) (Note 5)

550
(16,272)
168
20,509

550
(12,888)
1,468
(443)

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in Payables
Decrease/(Increase) in Provisions
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Liabilities
Net Result for the Year

41,452
(11,084)
14,719
632
184,390

11,853
(5,206)
(9,683)
(1,653)
(185,665)
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7.

RECEIVABLES

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

9,990
15,283
(818)
24,455

7,971
3,933
(794)
11,110

Current
Trade Receivables:
Property Rental
Fees for Services Rendered
Less: Impairment Allowance (a)
Subtotal - Trade Receivables
Other Receivables:
Work in Progress - Net Project Costs Recoverable
Goods and Services Tax Recoverable
Finance Lease Receivables (b)
Lessee Lease Incentives (c)
Makegood Costs Recoverable (d)
Fitout Construction Receivable (Note 13)
Accrued Rental Income
Accrued Fees for Services Rendered
Receivables from PAG Entities
Prepayments
Other
Subtotal - Other Receivables
Total Current Receivables

9,657
13,968
4,035
8,497
38,532
112
9,749
2,869
6,900
1,683
1,038
97,040
121,495

10,577
929
4,035
8,025
33,311
112
5,213
339
1,921
542
65,004
76,114

Non-Current
Other Receivables:
Finance Lease Receivables (b)
Lessee Lease Incentives (c)
Makegood Costs Recoverable (d)
Receivable from Lessees (Note 13)
Total Non-Current Receivables

63,143
39,757
118,362
9,480
230,742

62,331
42,865
114,066
7,687
226,949

Trade receivables and other receivables including makegood are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day terms.
Details regarding credit risk of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired, are disclosed in Note 20.
(a) Impairment Allowance
Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Amount Written Off
Increase/(Decrease) in Allowance
Carrying Amount at 30 June

2017
$'000
794
(179)
203
818

2016
$'000
780
(30)
44
794

The impairment allowance at 30 June 2017 includes an accumulated allowance of nil (nil at 30 June 2016) for
uncollectible minimum finance lease payments receivable.
(b) Finance Lease Receivables
Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Lease Payments Received
Property Finance Lease Income (Note 3(b))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

66,366
(4,773)
5,585
67,178

65,610
(4,791)
5,547
66,366

301,588
(234,410)
67,178

305,624
(239,258)
66,366

(i) Reconciliation between Gross Investment in Finance Leases as Lessor
and the Present Value of the Minimum Lease Payments Receivable
Gross Investment in Finance Leases as Lessor
Less: Unearned Finance Income
Present Value of the Minimum Lease Payments Receivable

Property NSW (Formerly Government Property NSW)
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7.

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Finance Lease Receivables (Continued)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

4,035
16,141
281,412
301,588

4,035
16,141
285,448
305,624

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

4,035
13,313
49,830
67,178

4,035
13,313
49,018
66,366

(ii) Aged Reconciliation of the Gross Investment in Finance Leases as Lessor
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Gross Investment in Finance Leases as Lessor
(iii) Aged Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Minimum Lease
Payments Receivable
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Present Value of the Minimum Lease Payments Receivable

(iv) The unguaranteed residual value of all finance leases as lessor accruing to the benefit of PNSW as at 30 June 2017 is
$18.9 million ($17.7 million at 30 June 2016).
(v) PNSW's material leasing arrangements which give rise to finance lease receivables involve owned properties
which are leased to tenants under lease terms of 50 years or more.
(c) Lessee Lease Incentives

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July (i)
Add Lease Incentives Provided
Less Current Year Amortisation (Note 3(a)(i))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

50,890
5,644
(8,280)
48,254

59,575
542
(9,227)
50,890

Current Asset
Non-Current Asset
Total Asset at 30 June

8,497
39,757
48,254

8,025
42,865
50,890

(i) Lessee lease incentives provided relate to incentives given to PNSW under head lease agreements which PNSW
has passed on to government agency tenants under sub-lease arrangements. Lessee lease incentives are amortised
over the term of each lease and are recognised as a reduction to Property Rental Income under Sale of Goods and
Services in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (Note 3(a)(i)).
(d) Makegood Costs Recoverable
Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Increase in Recoverable from Unwinding of Discount Rate (Note 15(b))
Increase/(Decrease) in Recoverable from Revised Estimate of Liability
Decrease in Recoverable from Payments (Note 15(b))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

2017
$'000
147,377
2,417
10,268
(3,166)
156,896

2016
$'000
137,648
2,825
12,426
(5,522)
147,377
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7.

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(d) Makegood Costs Recoverable (Continued)
Current Asset
Makegood Costs Recoverable (Note 15)
Less Payments Received in Advance
Total Current Asset at 30 June
Non-Current Asset
Makegood Costs Recoverable (Note 15)
Less Payments Received in Advance
Total Non-Current Asset at 30 June
Total Asset at 30 June

8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

39,464
(930)
38,534

33,583
(272)
33,311

118,362
118,362
156,896

114,724
(658)
114,066
147,377

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Non-Current
Land and Buildings
At Fair Value
Carrying Amount at 30 June

427,353
427,353

421,178
421,178

Land
At Fair Value
Carrying Amount at 30 June

160,402
160,402

128,097
128,097

(a) Carrying Amount at 30 June

Plant and Equipment
At Fair Value
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Carrying Amount at 30 June

10,415
(4,942)
5,473

8,328
(3,531)
4,797

Finance Lease Assets
At Fair Value
Carrying Amount at 30 June

209,700
209,700

170,094
170,094

Works in Progress

155,735

5,360

Total Non-Current Property, Plant and Equipment at 30 June

958,663

729,526

Total at Cost or Fair Value
Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortisation
Total Non-Current Property, Plant and Equipment at 30 June

963,605
(4,942)
958,663

733,057
(3,531)
729,526
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8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Carrying Amounts
Land and Buildings (i)
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Transfer from Works in Progress
Transfers from other Government Agencies (Note 17(c))
Transfer to Land
Reclassification to Non-Current Asset Held for Sale (Note 9(b))
Transfer to Local Government (Note 2(d) and Note 8(b)(iv))
Net Revaluation Reserve Increment/(Decrement) (Note 17(b)(i))
Depreciation Expense (Note 2(c))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

2017
$'000
421,178
1,491
25,051
(23,582)
(12,012)
25,573
(10,346)
427,353
2017
$'000

Land (i)
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Transfer from Works in Progress
Transfers from other Government Agencies (Note 17(c))
Transfer from Land and Buildings
Reclassification to Non-Current Asset Held for Sale (Note 9(b))
Reclassification from Non-Current Asset Held for Sale (Note 9(b))
Transfer to Local Government (Note 2(d) and Note 8(b)(iv))
Net Revaluation Reserve Increment/(Decrement) (Note 17(b)(i))
Net Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) Recognised
in the Net Result (Note 5)
Carrying Amount at 30 June

Plant and Equipment
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Additions
Transfer from Works in Progress
Depreciation Expense (Note 2(c))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

Finance Lease Assets (ii)
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Transfer from/(to) Works in Progress
Net Revaluation Reserve Increment (Note 17(b)(i))
Depreciation Expense (Note 2(c))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

323,577
2,108
102,669
(38,308)
(495)
39,820
(8,193)
421,178
2016
$'000

128,097
61
1,936
23,582
(45,200)
(20)
28,167

132,200
176
10,500
(23,331)
1,593
-

23,779
160,402

6,959
128,097

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

4,797
20
2,066
(1,410)
5,473

4,589
926
(718)
4,797

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

170,094
(2)
42,999
(3,391)
209,700
2017
$'000

Works in Progress (iii)
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Additions
Transfer to Land and Buildings
Transfer to Land
Transfer to Plant and Equipment
Transfer from/(to) Finance Lease Assets
Transfer to Intangible Assets (Note 10(b))
Impairment Loss (Note 5)
Carrying Amount at 30 June

2016
$'000

5,360
159,009
(1,491)
(61)
(2,066)
2
(4,948)
(70)
155,735

130,760
2
42,171
(2,839)
170,094
2016
$'000
2,049
7,095
(2,108)
(176)
(2)
(1,104)
(394)
5,360
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8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Carrying Amounts (Continued)
(i) Valuation of Land and Buildings and Land
All properties within the asset classes of Land and Buildings and Land (classified under Property Plant and Equipment)
were independently valued as at 30 June 2017 and PNSW conducts a comprehensive revaluation on three-year cynical
basis. Qualified valuers, AssetVal Pty Ltd, Savills Valuation, Knight Frank, and CBRE were engaged to provide PNSW
with independent property valuation reports. Each firm provided individual valuations on a sub-set of properties assigned to
them. The valuations took into consideration changes to market and economic conditions that have occurred since 30
June 2016 as well as the previous valuation reports.
(ii) Finance Lease Assets
Finance lease assets as at 30 June 2017 relate to a part of the 52 Martin Place building, Sydney. 52 Martin Place
building are being amortised over the life of the lease. 52 Martin Place building was independently revalued on 30 June
2017 by qualified valuer, Knight Frank who has recent experience in comparable markets and the category of the finance
lease asset being valued.
(iii) Works in Progress
Expenditure capitalised during the year and recorded under works in progress as at 30 June 2017 relates to acquisition
of lands and refurbishment works in various office buildings and PNSW corporate capital projects totalling $155.7
million ($5.4 million at 30 June 2016).
The significant increase in Work in Progress has resulted mainly from the payment to another NSW government entity in
June 2017 for the acquisition of lands.
(iv) Transfer to Local Government
The following property was transferred to Local Government for nominal consideration during 2016-17:
• Bathurst, 224 Howick Street (to Bathurst Regional Council)

9.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

41,874
46,099
87,973

45,746
6,340
52,086

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

(a) Carrying Amount at 30 June
Land and Buildings
Land
Carrying Amount at 30 June
(b) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Carrying Amounts
Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Reclassification from Property, Plant and Equipment - Land and Buildings (Note 8(b))
Reclassification from Property, Plant and Equipment - Land (Note 8(b))
Reclassification to Property, Plant and Equipment - Land (Note 8(b))
Impairment (Note 5)
Disposals (Note 4)
Carrying Amount at 30 June

52,086
12,012
45,200
(2,746)
(18,579)
87,973

80,279
38,308
23,331
(1,593)
(88,239)
52,086
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(a) Carrying Amount at 30 June
Computer Software
Gross Carrying Amount
Less Accumulated Amortisation
Carrying Amount at 30 June
(b) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Carrying Amounts
Intangible Assets
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Additions/Acquisitions
Transfer from Works in Progress (Note 8(b))
Impairment Loss (Note 5)
Amortisation Expense (Note 2(c))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

11. OTHER
Emerging Asset (i)
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Net Revaluation Reserve Increment (Note 17(b)(i))
Emerging Asset Increment (Note 3(d))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

10,957
(5,241)
5,716

6,008
(4,115)
1,893

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

1,893
4,948
(1,125)
5,716

865
1,083
1,104
(21)
(1,138)
1,893

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

6,450
400
550
7,400

5,850
50
550
6,450

(i) An emerging asset in relation to the Sydney Opera House Car Park is recognised under Non-Current Assets - Other.
The car park land, which is recognised as a Finance Lease Receivable, was leased to a private consortium on a 50
year ground lease which commenced on 13 March 1993. The lessee has constructed, at its own expense, a
subterranean car park which has an assessed economic life of greater than 50 years. At the expiration of the lease
term PNSW has the right to receive the car park.
The emerging value of the car park is $7.4 million at 30 June 2017 ($6.5 million at 30 June 2016). The emerging value is
being allocated to revenue and Non-Current Assets - Other during the term of the lease as if it were the compound value
of an annuity discounted at the NSW Government bond rate applicable at 13 March 1993, being 8.25%.
Qualified valuer, Knight Frank was engaged to provide an independent fair value valuation of the lessor's interest in the
freehold property subject to the existing lease as prescribed under Treasury Accounting Policy TPP 06-8 "Accounting
for Privately Financed Projects" as at 30 June 2017.
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12. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Fair Value Hierarchy
2017

Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 8)
Land and Buildings
Land
Finance Lease Assets
Other Asset (Note 11)
Emerging Asset

2016

Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 8)
Land and Buildings
Land
Finance Lease Assets
Other Asset (Note 11)
Emerging Asset

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total Fair
Value
$'000

-

427,353
160,402
209,700

-

427,353
160,402
209,700

-

7,400
804,855

-

7,400
804,855

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total Fair
Value
$'000

-

421,178
128,097
170,094

-

421,178
128,097
170,094

-

6,450
725,819

-

6,450
725,819

There were no transfers between Level 1 or 2 during 2016-17. The 'Total Fair Value' above includes assets measured at
fair value and will not reconcile to the total Property, Plant and Equipment recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position as this includes assets which are measured at depreciated historical cost, as an approximation of fair value.
These non-specialised assets do not require fair value hierarchy disclosures under AASB 13 "Fair Value Measurement".
(b) Valuation Techniques, Input and Processes
PNSW's Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Asset assets are traded in active markets. The fair values of these
assets are estimated using valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable market inputs, for example market
sale, market rent and interest rates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is
included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included
in Level 3. The valuation process is managed by PNSW's Property Management Group (PMG) who engages external
independent valuers to perform the valuations of property assets required for financial reporting purposes. The valuation
reports are subsequently reviewed by relevant PMG Asset Managers prior to being endorsed by senior management.
The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the
previous reporting period.

13. PAYABLES
Current
Sundry Creditors and Accruals
Fitout Construction Payable (Note 7)
Agency Property Transaction Monies (Note 6(a)(ii))
Payable to Personnel Services Provider (Note 1(a))
Total Current Payables
Non-Current
Payable to Lessor (Note 7)
Total Non-Current Payables

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

20,380
112
7,161
4,971
32,624

18,418
112
4,490
649
23,669

9,480
9,480

7,687
7,687

Details regarding liquidity risk, including a maturity analysis of the above payables are disclosed in Note 20.
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14. BORROWINGS
Current
Finance Lease Liabilities (a)
Total Current Borrowings
Non-Current
Finance Lease Liabilities (a)
Total Non-Current Borrowings

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

-

866
866

34,398
34,398

34,398
34,398

The Finance Lease Liabilities are secured by the assets leased. Details regarding liquidity risk, including a maturity
analysis of the above borrowings are disclosed in Note 20.
(a) Finance Lease Liabilities

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

35,264
(5,705)
4,839
34,398

36,339
(6,004)
4,929
35,264

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Current
Land Remediation (a)
Makegood Restoration ((b) and Note 7(d))
Makegood Restoration - PNSW Self Occupied Premises (b)
Total Current Provisions

56,601
39,464
306
96,371

69,966
33,583
103,549

Non-Current
Land Remediation (a)
Makegood Restoration ((b) and Note 7(d))
Makegood Restoration - PNSW Self Occupied Premises (b)
Total Non-Current Provisions

118,362
118,362

1,355
114,724
301
116,380

Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Minimum Lease Payments
Finance Lease Interest Charges (Note 2(e))
Carrying Amount at 30 June (Note 18(c))

15. PROVISIONS
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15. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) Land Remediation
Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Decrease in Provision from Payments
Decrease in Provision from Reclassification to Payables
Increase in Provision from Unwinding of Discount Rate (Note 2(e))
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision from Revised Estimate of Liability Recognised
in Net Result (Note 5)
Carrying Amount at 30 June
Current Liability
Non-Current Liability
Total Liability at 30 June

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

71,321
(15,470)
1,130

68,458
(2,216)
(3,146)
1,405

(380)
56,601

6,820
71,321

56,601
56,601

69,966
1,355
71,321

Land remediation provisions as at 30 June 2017 relate to Newcastle landholdings (i) and Hunter's Hill landholdings (ii).
(i) Newcastle Landholdings
In June 2002, the Crown acquired the former BHP main steel works site at Mayfield and the Kooragang Islands waste
emplacement sites in the Newcastle ports area. These sites required remediation to remove various contaminants
associated with steel making. As part of the acquisition, the Crown negotiated for BHP Billiton to pay an amount to
compensate for the total estimated cost of the land remediation and other works. In February 2007, the landholdings,
remaining remediation liability and cash balance were transferred to PNSW.
In July 2009, management control for two parcels of the unremediated land at Mayfield and the Kooragang Island site
were transferred to the Newcastle Port Corporation (NPC). At 30 June 2017, PNSW retained ownership of the
remaining parcel of the former steel works site at Mayfield (known as Mayfield Lot 1).
The Hunter Development Corporation (HDC) is the agency assigned by Government to undertake the remediation works.
Under arrangement, PNSW periodically reimburses the HDC for works undertaken and each year, the HDC provides
PNSW with a revised estimate of costs remaining to complete the works. Calculation of this estimate is based on
current technical studies and analysis taking into account current and future contract costs, referable to awarded
contracts where available. Where necessary, costs are indexed and discounted using general construction industry
data available.
(ii) Hunter's Hill Landholdings
In June 2009, PNSW acquired land at lots 7, 9 and 11 Nelson Parade Hunter's Hill. Each of these lots are situated on a
former uranium smelter site and, as part of the land transfers, the NSW Government has given PNSW the responsibility
to remediate the contaminated land. PNSW has estimated and recognised a remediation liability at the reporting date for
all three lots. This estimate has been determined using quotes, contract and tender details available as at 30 June 2017.
Minor works were undertaken in 2016-17, however the remaining remediation will be undertaken and completed in
2017-18.
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15. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Makegood Restoration
Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Increase in Provision from Unwinding of Discount Rate (Note 7(d))
Increase in Provision from Unwinding of Discount Rate - PNSW Occupied
Premises (Note 2(e))
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision from Revised Estimate of Liability
Decrease in Provision from Payments (Note 7(d))
Carrying Amount at 30 June
Current Liability
Non-Current Liability
Total Liability at 30 June

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

148,608
2,417

138,811
2,825

5
10,268
(3,166)
158,132

7
12,487
(5,522)
148,608

39,770
118,362
158,132

33,583
115,025
148,608

The makegood restoration liability is calculated on all leased properties, where PNSW is the lessee and reflects an
estimate of the cost to makegood the premises to their original condition at the end of the lease term. The makegood
costs are recoverable in full from the sub-lessees except for PNSW self occupied premises which totalled $0.3 million
at 30 June 2017 ($0.3 million at 30 June 2016). An average discount rate of 1.82% was used at 30 June 2017 (1.63%
as at 30 June 2016) and the level of the provision is reviewed at the end of each year. Any movement in the Makegood
Restoration Provision is also reflected in Makegood Costs Recoverable within Receivables (Note 7(d)) except for PNSW
self occupied premises.

16. OTHER LIABILITIES

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

8,497
8,497

8,025
8,025

39,757
15,000
54,757

42,865
15,000
57,865

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Additional Lease Incentives
Less Current Year Amortisation (Note 2(b)(i))
Carrying Amount at 30 June

50,890
5,644
(8,280)
48,254

59,575
542
(9,227)
50,890

Current Liability
Non-Current Liability
Total Liability at 30 June

8,497
39,757
48,254

8,025
42,865
50,890

Current
Lessor Lease Incentives (a)
Total Current Liability at 30 June
Non-Current
Lessor Lease Incentives (a)
Deposit Monies from Assets Sale (b)
Total Non-Current Liability at 30 June
(a) Lessor Lease Incentives

Lessor lease incentives received relate to incentives given to PNSW under head lease agreements. Lessor lease
incentives are amortised over the term of each lease and are recognised as a reduction to Property Head Lease
Expense under Other Operating Expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (Note 2(b)(i)).
(b) Deposit Monies from Assets Sale
In September 2015, PNSW received $15 million deposit monies for the purchase of a long-term lease over properties
located at 23-33 and 35-39 Bridge Street, Sydney. As the commencement of the lease is not until July 2018 and is
subject to the purchaser obtaining all design and planning approvals for conversion of the properties into a hotel, the
deposit is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as Other Liabilities.
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17. NOTE TO STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

5,225

4,089

11,792
17,017

62,500
66,589

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Asset Class:
Land and Buildings
Land
Finance Lease Assets
Fine Arts & Heritage Assets
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve at 30 June

31,075
35,181
153,873
2,759
222,888

65,164
114,288
2,759
182,211

Movement:
Carrying Amount at 1 July
Net Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus (i)
Transfer of Asset Revaluation Reserve on Disposed Assets
Carrying Amount at 30 June

182,211
97,139
(56,462)
222,888

100,170
82,041
182,211

(a) Financial Distributions
Normal Distributions from Surplus on Rental
Operations (Paid to the State Government) (Note 1(l))
Capital Repatriations from the Net Proceeds of Asset
Sales (Paid to the State Government) (Note 1(l))

(b) Asset Revaluation Reserve Dissection

(i) Net Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus - Dissection

Land and Buildings (Note 8(b))
Land (Note 8(b))
Finance Lease Assets (Note 8(b))
Emerging Asset (Note 11)
Net Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus
(c) Net Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets from Equity Transfers

Transfer of Defined Benefit Superannuation Liabilities to the Crown
through DFSI
Transfer of Properties from other Government Agencies:
Land and Buildings (Note 8(b))
Land (Note 8(b))
Total Net Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets from Equity Transfers

18. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

25,573
28,167
42,999
400
97,139

39,820
42,171
50
82,041

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

-

18,182

25,051
1,936
26,987

102,669
10,500
131,351

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

1,265
1,265

483
483

(a) Capital Expenditure Commitments
Capital expenditure contracted at balance date but not
provided for:
Payable within one year
Payable later than one year but not later than five years
Payable later than five years
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments (Incl GST)

Total capital expenditure commitments relate to contracted refurbishment works on various owned buildings. Capital
expenditure commitments at 30 June 2017 include GST recoverable input tax credits of $0.1 million ($0.1m at 30 June
2016) that are expected to be recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office.
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18. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

384,946
809,409
496,393
1,690,748

369,852
758,423
403,555
1,531,830

(b) Operating Lease Commitments
Head lease future minimum lease payments contracted
at balance date but not provided for:
Payable within one year
Payable later than one year but not later than five years
Payable later than five years
Total Operating Lease Commitments (Incl GST)

The majority of future minimum lease payments will be recouped by PNSW under sub-leases. Future minimum lease
payments and receipts as at 30 June 2017 include GST recoverable input tax credits of $153.7 million ($139.3 million at
30 June 2016) and GST payable of $153.7 million ($139.3 million at 30 June 2016).
(c) Finance Lease Commitments

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Minimum Lease Payments:
Payable within one year
Payable later than one year but not later than five years
Payable later than five years
Total Minimum Lease Payment Commitment

4,808
19,234
421,542
445,584

5,705
19,234
426,350
451,289

Finance Costs:
Payable within one year
Payable later than one year but not later than five years
Payable later than five years
Total Finance Costs Commitment

(4,808)
(19,234)
(387,144)
(411,186)

(4,839)
(19,234)
(391,952)
(416,025)

34,398
34,398

866
34,398
35,264

Present Value of Finance Lease Commitments:
Payable within one year
Payable later than one year but not later than five years
Payable later than five years
Total Present Value of Finance Lease Commitments (Note 14(a))

PNSW's Finance Lease Commitments comprise lease on part of the 52 Martin Place building, Sydney. The 52 Martin
Place lease liability is being amortised over the lease term, which is 124.25 years and ends in March 2110. The
discount rate implicit in the lease is 14.91% pa.

19. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at the reporting date, PNSW was not aware of any contingent assets or contingent liabilities.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
PNSW’s principal financial instruments are outlined below. These financial instruments arise directly from PNSW’s
operations or are required to finance PNSW’s operations. PNSW does not enter into or trade financial instruments,
including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
PNSW’s main risks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with PNSW’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative and qualitative disclosures are included throughout these
financial statements.
The Chief Executive Officer has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of risk management and reviews
and agrees policies for managing risks. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by PNSW, to set risk limits and controls and to monitor risks. Compliance with policies is reviewed by PNSW on a
regular basis.
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2017
$'000

2016
$'000

Notes
1(h)(x), 6

83,469

108,891

1(h)(xi), 7

336,586

300,213

1(i)(i), 13

38,560

29,229

1(i)(ii), 14

34,398

35,264

(a) Financial Instrument Categories
Financial Assets - Carrying Amounts
Class
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (i)

Category
n/a
Loans and Receivables
(at Amortised Cost)

Financial Liabilities - Carrying Amounts
Class
Category
Payables (ii)
Financial Liabilities
(at Amortised Cost)
Borrowings
Financial Liabilities
(at Amortised Cost)

Notes

(i) Receivables exclude statutory receivables and prepayments as they are not within the scope of AASB 7.
(ii) Payables exclude statutory payables and unearned revenue as they are not within scope of AASB 7.
(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of PNSW’s debtors defaulting on their contractual obligations, resulting
in a financial loss to PNSW. The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally represented by the carrying amount of
the financial assets (net of any allowance for impairment).
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of PNSW, including cash and receivables. No collateral is held by PNSW.
PNSW has not granted any material financial guarantees, individually or in aggregate.
All of PNSW's cash deposits are held within NSW Treasury Banking System bank accounts. All deposits held within the
NSW Treasury Banking System are guaranteed by the State.
(i) Cash
Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances within the NSW Treasury Banking System. Interest is earned on
PNSW's Land Remediation Account daily bank balance at the monthly average NSW Treasury Corporation 11am
unofficial cash rate, adjusted for a management fee to NSW Treasury. All other bank accounts are non-interest bearing
within the NSW Treasury Banking System.
(ii) Receivables - Trade Debtors
All trade debtors are recognised as amounts receivable at balance date. Collectability of trade debtors is reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Procedures as established in the Treasurer’s Directions are followed to recover outstanding amounts,
including letters of demand. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written off. An allowance for impairment is
raised when there is objective evidence that PNSW will not be able to collect all amounts due. This evidence includes
past experience, current and expected changes in economic conditions and debtor credit ratings. No interest is earned
on trade debtors. Sales are made on 30-day terms.
PNSW is not materially exposed to concentrations of credit risk to a single trade debtor or group of debtors. Based on
past experience, debtors which are not past due totalling $11.0 million ($7.0 million at 30 June 2016) are not
considered impaired and these represent 43.7% (59.0% at 30 June 2016) of the total trade debtors. Most of PNSW’s
debtors are NSW Government Agencies and therefore have an AAA credit rating. There are no debtors which are
currently not past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated.
The only financial assets that are past due or impaired are trade debtors relating to property rental and fees-for-services
income. These are included within Receivables in the Statement of Financial Position.
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued)
(ii) Receivables - Trade Debtors (Continued)
Credit Risk - 2017
Financial Assets
Receivables:
Past Due But Not Impaired
Considered Impaired
Total Credit Risk

<1 Mth
$'000

>1 <2 Mths
$'000

Overdue
>2 <3 Mths
$'000

>3 Mths
$'000

Total
2017
$'000

7,184
7,184

1,938
1,938

-

4,292
818
5,110

13,414
818
14,232

<1 Mth
$'000

>1 <2 Mths
$'000

Overdue
>2 <3 Mths
$'000

>3 Mths
$'000

Total
2016
$'000

324
11
335

1,311
1,311

206
33
239

2,240
750
2,990

4,081
794
4,875

Credit Risk - 2016
Financial Assets
Receivables:
Past Due But Not Impaired
Considered Impaired
Total Credit Risk

Notes
1. Each row in the above table reports "gross receivables".
2. The ageing analysis excludes statutory receivables, as these are not within the scope of AASB 7 and excludes
receivables that are not past due and not impaired. Therefore, the Total Credit Risk line will not reconcile to the
receivables total recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.
(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that PNSW will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due. PNSW
continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows planning to ensure adequate holding of available cash.
PNSW’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior period data and current assessment of risk.
Liabilities are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not
invoiced. Amounts owing to suppliers (which are unsecured) are settled in accordance with the policy set out in NSW
Treasury Circular 11/12. For small business suppliers, where terms are not specified, payment is made not later than
30 days from date of receipt of a correctly rendered invoice. For other suppliers, if trade terms are not specified,
payment is made no later than the end of the month following the month in which an invoice or a statement is received.
For small business suppliers, where payment is not made within the specified time period, simple interest must be paid
automatically unless an existing contract specifies otherwise. For payments to other suppliers, PNSW may
automatically pay the supplier simple interest. The rate of interest applied by PNSW accords with the current rate
applicable under section 22 of the Taxation Administration Act 1996 .
PNSW's financial liabilities, as listed at (a) above, are all non-interest bearing. Payables are all payable within 12
months (Note 13). Payable items which are out of the scope of AASB 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" have been
excluded from the carrying amount shown in the Statement of Financial Position. These items are GST payable and
unearned revenue.
A maturity profile analysis of PNSW's Finance Lease liabilities is presented at Note 18(c).
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. PNSW’s exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk on PNSW’s BHP
Remediation interest earning bank balance held within the NSW Treasury Banking System. PNSW has no exposure
to foreign currency risk and does not enter into commodity contracts.
The effect on profit and equity due to a reasonably possible change in risk variable is outlined below under interest rate
risk. A reasonably possible change in risk variable has been determined after taking into account the economic
environment in which PNSW operates and the time frame for the assessment (i.e. until the end of the next annual
reporting period). The sensitivity analysis is based on risk exposures in existence at the reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
(i) Interest Rate Risk
A reasonably possible change of ± 1% has been used, consistent with current trends in interest rates. The basis will be
reviewed annually and amended where there is a structural change in the level of interest rate volatility. PNSW’s
exposure to interest rate risk is set out below.
Interest Rate Risk - 2017
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Interest Rate Risk - 2016
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Carrying
Amount
$'000
21,823

Carrying
Amount
$'000
39,460

-1%
Profit
$'000

+1%
Equity
$'000

(218)

(218)

Profit
$'000

Equity
$'000

218

218

-1%
Profit
$'000
(395)

+1%
Equity
$'000
(395)

Profit
$'000

Equity
$'000

395

395

The above interest rate sensitivity analysis has been performed on the assumption that all other variables remain
unchanged. No sensitivity analysis has been performed on foreign exchange risk as PNSW is not exposed to such
foreign exchange fluctuations.
(e) Fair Value
Financial instruments as shown in Note 20(a) are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at amortised cost,
which approximates the fair value.

21. BUDGET REVIEW
(a) Net Result
The Net Result of $184.4 million was $29.7 million greater than budget, primarily due to:
• a $20.5 million increase in Other Gain/(Losses) mainly from Property, Plant and Equipment net revaluation gains of
$23.8 million, offset partly by the impairment losses on Non-Current Assets Held for Sale $2.7 million (Note 5); and
• a $5.9 million increase in State Government - Capital Contribution income for the construction costs of the new office
accommodation for NSW Health at Royal North Shore Hospital, St Leonards.
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21. BUDGET REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(b) Assets and Liabilities
Total Assets of $1.5 billion were $388.7 million greater than budget, primarily due to:
• a $44.1 million increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents mainly due to the deferral of budgeted land
remediation works (Note 21(c)) of $56.6 million to 2017-18;
• a $67.1 million increase in Receivables mainly due to an increase in Trade Receivables of $21.3 million, Receivables
from PAG entities of $6.9 million, GST Receivable of $13.4 million and Makegood Cost Recoverable of $12.1 million;
• a $219.9 million increase in Property, Plant and Equipment mainly due to the net revaluation increment of $120.5
million recognised in 2016-17 and acquisition of lands from another NSW government entity in June 2017; and
• a $57.6 million increase in Non-Current Asset Held For Sale due to high value property assets being on the market as
at 30 June 2017.
Total Liabilities of $354.5 million were $94.8 million greater than budget, primarily due to:
• a $32.1 million increase in Payables mainly due to increase in Agency Property Transaction Monies of $7.2 million and
Sundry Creditors and Accruals of $12.0 million; and
• a $69.3 million increase in Provision mainly due to the deferral of the budgeted remediation works at Mayfield and
Hunter’s Hill (Note 15(a)) of $56.6 million to 2017-18 and increase in Makegood Restoration Provision of $13.4 million.
(c) Cash Flows
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents of $83.5 million was $44.1 million greater than budget, primarily due to:
• a $56.6 million increase due to the budgeted land remediation works at Mayfield and Hunters Hill being deferred to
2017-18.

22. NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Non-cash Investing Activities
Properties transferred from other Government Agencies
Property transferred to Local Government
Defined Benefit Superannuation Liabilities assumed by the Crown through DFSI
Total Non-cash Investing Activities

2017
$'000
26,987
(20)
26,967

2016
$'000
113,169
(495)
18,182
130,856

23. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Key Management Personnel Compensation
During 2016-17, PNSW incurred $1.42 million in respect of the Key Management Personnel services that were provided
by DFSI.
(b) Transactions and Outstanding Balances with Other Related Parties
During 2016-17, other than the remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel by DFSI, PNSW has not entered into
other transactions with Key Management Personnel, their close family members and controlled or jointly controlled
entities thereof.
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23. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(c) Transactions and Outstanding Balances with Other Government Entities
During 2016-17, PNSW entered into transactions with other entities that are controlled/jointly controlled/significantly
influenced by NSW Government. These transactions are collectively, but not individually, a significant portion of PNSW's
property rental income, fees for services rendered and grant and contribution revenue.
In 2016-17, the following individually significant transactions were entered by PNSW with other government entities:

Name

Nature of Transaction

NSW Health
Local Land Services
Total Individually Significant Transactions

Property Purchase
Property Transfer In

Transaction
Value
$'000

Net
Receivable/
(Payable)
$'000

155,000
20,530
175,530

-

24. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(a) Adjusting Events
There are no known events after the reporting period which would give rise to a material impact on the reported results or
financial position of PNSW as at 30 June 2017.
(b) Non-Adjusting Events
(i) Owned and Leased Office Accommodation Property Vesting and Property Divestments – Pursuant to the
recommendations of the Government's Property Asset Utilisation Taskforce and subsequent Premier’s Memorandum
M2012-20, further divestment of various PNSW owned properties, in addition to the ongoing vesting of Government
agency owned and leased properties is likely to occur in separate tranches during 2017-18. As the identification and
validation of these properties was still in progress at the reporting date, estimates of the financial impact on PNSW's
accounts in 2017-18 are not available.
There are no known other non-adjusting events after the reporting period.

End of Audited Financial Statements
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 Statutory information

Ou r ch ar t er
The NSW Government introduced Property NSW (PNSW) as the new name of Government
Property NSW (GPNSW), effective 25 October 2016, when Clause 1.11 of Schedule 1,
Statute Law (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act (No. 2) 2016 was assented to.
Property NSW has been assigned the NSW Government mandate to continually improve the
management of the NSW Government’s owned and leased real property portfolio.
Property NSW operates under the following principal legislation:
 Property NSW Act 2006.
(The substitution of section 4 of this Act by the Statute Law (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act (No 2) 2016 effects the alteration of the name of Government
Property NSW in terms of section 53 of the Interpretation Act 1987 and accordingly
that section applies.)

Aim s an d o b ject ives
Under its Act, the principal objectives of Property NSW in exercising its functions are:





to improve operational efficiencies in the use government agency properties,
particularly generic properties such as offices, warehouses, depots and car parks
to manage properties of government agencies in a way that supports the service
delivery functions of those agencies
to provide advice and support within government on property matters, and
to operate at least as efficiently as any comparable business, consistently with the
principles of ecologically sustainable development and social responsibility for the
community.

Property NSW delivers on its Act by:






holding, managing, maintaining, acquiring or disposing of property for the
government and government agencies
undertaking, managing, coordinating or participating in the development of
government agency property
arranging, where appropriate, for the sharing of facilities and premises by
government agencies to reduce operational expenses
providing property services for its own or government agency properties, including
property management, maintenance and improvements
providing advice to the Minister in relation to government agency property, in
particular:
o whether the properties are being efficiently utilised
o regarding the transfer of properties to Property NSW and related budgets
o other matters relating to government agency properties, as the Minister directs.

Man ag em en t an d st r u ct u r e
In 2015/16, Government Property NSW (GPNSW), Teacher Housing Authority of New South
Wales (THA) and the Waste Assets Management Corporation (WAMC) consolidated with
Sydney Harbour Foreshore Authority (SHFA) to form Property NSW.
Additionally, from 1 July 2016, Public Works Facilities Management and Valuation Services
consolidated into Property NSW, and Public Works Advisory joined Property NSW to form
the Property and Advisory Group.
As at 30 June 2017, Property NSW’s Executive team consisted of:










Brett Newman, Property and Advisory Group Deputy Secretary and Property NSW
CEO
Adam Howarth, Executive Director, Portfolio Management Group
Dennis Szabo, Executive Director, Commercial Transactions
Leon Walker, Executive Director, Major Projects
Steve Gray, Acting Executive Director, Leasing
Jennifer Palmer, Executive Director, Operational and Housing Services
Stuart Crawford, Executive Director, Property Financial Services
Bill Frith, Executive Director, Strategy
Anna Welanyk, Executive Director, Valuation Services

Su m m ar y r eview o f o p er at io n s
Utilisation improvement has a significant ongoing impact on total rental cost as leases are
renewed. Given the significant staffing base working in properties managed by Property
NSW, the 0.4m2/ FTE utilisation reduction achieved could represent over 23,000m 2
(approximately three per cent of the leased portfolio) in reduced space.
For the Property NSW-managed portfolio, including operational space, total utilised space
per FTE in both the CBD (15.2m2/FTE) and Metro (15.7m2/FTE) portfolios have improved
over the financial year by 0.5 m2/FTE and 0.2m2/FTE, respectively. Both CBD and Metro
utilisation rates are ahead of their respective benchmarks1 of 18.8m2/FTE and 17.8m2/ FTE,
respectively.
Leased Portfolio Rental Costs: As the size of the leased portfolio grows (through both
asset sales and changing government priorities), managing the average rental costs of
commercial leases becomes increasingly important. Property NSW seeks to add value
through employing a greater collective bargaining power than individual agencies would
have in order to deliver both lower and more stable rental costs for the Government.
In 2016/17, Property NSW facilitated accommodation changes in the CBD prime market,
resulting in an increased average rental cost2 from $623/m2 to $640/m2 for that class of
occupation, an increase of 2.7 per cent. Across the owned and managed portfolio there has
been a marginal increase of 0.8 per cent in the cost per square metre, well below the CPI
increase for the year.

1

BIS Shrapnel Sydney Commercial Property Prospects – Supply & Demand for Sydney CBD and Metropolitan office space – 2017.

2

JLL Office Financial Indicators – Prime Gross Effective Rent ($/m 2) – Q2 2017.

Commercial Property Portfolio 3 Total Returns (% pa)

The five-year rolling capital expenditure on the commercial portfolio has fallen as Property
NSW continues to focus on the capital maintenance of strategic assets required to be held
for the long term or requiring immediate expenditure. In 2016/17, the five-year rolling capital
expenditure average ($47/m2) was below the benchmark.
Commercial Property Portfolio Capital Expenditure ($/m2)

Our focus continues on operating expenditure for commercial assets. In 2016/17, the
average operational expenditure per square metre increased broadly in line with the market
across the entire portfolio.
Retail Portfolio Performance
Property NSW manages significant retail leases in The Rocks and Darling Harbour
precincts, including over 200 stallholders at The Rocks Markets.
The Rocks, Circular Quay, and Darling Harbour are significant cultural and heritage
precincts for Sydney, NSW, and Australia. They are popular destinations for local and
international visitors and contribute significantly to the State’s economy.

3

Source data: GPNSW from MRI database as at 30 June 2017.

Over 14.5 million people movements were recorded in The Rocks in 2016/17, with people
enjoying the entertainment, shopping and dining experiences on offer. This was in line with
the people movements in the previous year.
In Darling Harbour, 25.9 million people movements were recorded in 2016/17. This was in
line with people movements of the previous year.
Despite significant construction activity, tenant sales growth in Place Management’s retail
portfolio has increased by eight per cent over the past year. This represented a significant
growth in food and beverage tenants.
Vacancies for retail spaces continue to remain low in comparison to the Sydney CBD
benchmark of 3.3 per cent4.
Retail Vacancy (%)

Leg al ch an g e
Property NSW provides a range of Statutory Acquisitions Services, which include vesting
under the Property NSW Act and acquisitions under the Land Acquisition (Just Terms
Compensation) Act 1991 for Property NSW or client purposes.
Three Orders under the Property NSW Act were notified in 2016/17 to transfer a total of 69
properties and 34 leases to Property NSW to the value of $22,394,116, in accordance with
Premier’s Memorandum 2012-20.
The property transfers were affected from the following agencies for the purposes of ongoing
management or to facilitate disposal:





Department of Industry, Skills and Regional Development
Department of Planning and Environment
NSW Department of Transport
Department of Justice NSW Police Force.

The site for the New Grafton Correctional Centre (NGCC) at Lavadia was acquired, in name
only, on behalf of the Department of Justice, under the Land Acquisition (Just Terms
Compensation) Act 1991 in July 2016.

4

Retail Benchmark source – JLL Sydney CBD Prime Retail Vacancy Rate, June 2017.

Man ag em en t an d act ivit ies
Property NSW is the NSW Government’s central agency responsible for considering
strategic real property asset management issues. Property NSW primarily manages the
NSW Government’s non-specialised property portfolio, including office and other generic
assets, and the key precincts of Darling Harbour and The Rocks.
Our focus is on the strategic review, acquisition, divestment and greater utilisation of the
government’s real property assets and precincts, which results in better visitor experiences
and services for the people of NSW.
Our assets comprise office buildings, significant heritage properties, teacher housing, noncommercial assets and landholdings, and many have been vested in Property NSW by
other government agencies.
Our organisation works closely with a range of government agencies, providing specialist
industry knowledge, expertise and understanding of the unique requirements of government
property management.

Hu m an r eso u r ces
Employment Statistics
Division
Senior Executive
Senior Officer
Ongoing
Temporary
Graduate

Total

20141,2

20151,2

20161,2

20171,2

7.0
4.0
93.5
13.9
-

15.4
3.0
77.7
2.0
-

20.3
96.3
3
-

28.1
259.2
8
3

118.4

98.1

119.6

298.3

Note 1:

Full time equivalent staff (excludes chairpersons, casuals, contractor/agency staff, statutory appointments, trustees,
council committee members, staff on secondment to other agencies and staff on long term leave without pay).

Note 2:

Statistics are based on Workforce Profile census data as at 19 June 2014, 18 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 29 June
2017.

20171,2,3

Senior Executive
Band

Female

Male

Representation by
Women %

Total

Band 4
(Secretary)

0

0

0

0%

Band 3
(Deputy Secretary)

0

1

1

0%

Band 2
(Executive Director)

2

4

6

33%

Band 1
(Director)

8

14

22

36%

10

19

29

34%

Total

Average total remuneration Senior Executives4
$240,300
Note 1:

Senior Executive statistics exclude casuals, contractor/agency staff, statutory appointments, staff on secondment to
other agencies and staff on long term leave without pay.

Note 2:

Statistics are based on Workforce Profile census data as at 30 June 2016 and 29 June 2017.

Note 3:

2017 numbers include only those employees appointed under the Government Sector Employment Act.

Note 4:

Salary ranges effective at the Workforce Profile census dates of 30 June 2016 and 29 June 2017.

Employee related costs
Employee related costs 2017
Executive

Amount
$7,040,005

Non-Executive

$29,874,599

Total

$36,914,604

Ratio Senior Executive

%19.1

Workforce Diversity
Trends in the Representation of Workforce Diversity Groups
Workforce Diversity Group

Benchmark/
20151,2
Target

20161,2

20171

NA

38.8%

46.8%

46.0%

Aboriginal People and Torres Strait Islanders

2.6%

0.0%

0.0%

1.6%

People whose First Language Spoken as a Child was not
4
English

19%

13.6%

13.7%

17.3%

People with a Disability5

N/A

1.9%

2.4%

4.0%

People with a Disability Requiring Work-Related
Adjustment

1.5%

1.0%

1.6%

1.1%

Women
3

Note 1:

Statistics are based on Workforce Profile census data as at 18 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 29 June 2017.

Note 2:

Workforce diversity statistics for 2015 and 2016 reflect the current composition of the department and may vary from
those reported in previous annual reports.

Note 3:

The NSW Public Sector Aboriginal Employment Strategy 2014 – 17 introduced an aspirational target of 1.8% by 2021
for each of the sector’s salary bands. If the aspirational target of 1.8% is achieved in salary bands not currently at or
above 1.8%, the cumulative representation of Aboriginal employees in the sector is expected to reach 3.3%.

Note 4:

A benchmark from the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) Census of Population and Housing has been included
for People whose First Language Spoken as a Child was not English. The ABS Census does not provide information
about first language, but does provide information about country of birth. The benchmark of 19% is the percentage of
the NSW general population born in a country where English is not the predominant language.

Note 5:

Work is underway to improve the reporting of disability information in the sector to enable comparisons with
population data. For this reason, no benchmark has been provided for People with a Disability.

Trends in the Distribution of Workforce Diversity Groups
Workforce Diversity Group

Benchmark/
6,7
Target

2015

2016

2017

Women

100

94

95

90

Aboriginal People and Torres Strait Islanders

100

N/A

N/A

N/A

People whose First Language Spoken as a Child was not
English

100

N/A

N/A

98

People with a Disability

100

N/A

N/A

N/A

People with a Disability Requiring Work-Related
Adjustment

100

N/A

N/A

N/A

Note 6:

A Distribution Index score of 100 indicates that the distribution of members of the Workforce Diversity group across salary
bands is equivalent to that of the rest of the workforce. A score less than 100 means that members of the Workforce Diversity
group tend to be more concentrated at lower salary bands than is the case for other staff. The more pronounced this tendency
is, the lower the score will be. In some cases, the index may be more than 100, indicating that members of the Workforce
Diversity group tend to be more concentrated at higher salary bands than is the case for other staff.

Note 7:

The Distribution Index is not calculated when the number of employees in the Workforce Diversity group is less than 20 or
when the number of other employees is less than 20.

Co n su lt an t s

Disab ilit y in clu sio n act io n p lan s
As part of the Department of Finance, Services and Innovation (DFSI), Property NSW
supports the department’s Disability Inclusion Action Plan 2015-18. The plan sets out how
DFSI will work towards:





the development of positive community attitudes and behaviours towards people with
disability
the creation of more liveable communities for people with disability
the achievement of a higher rate of meaningful employment participation by people
with disability through inclusive employment practices
more equitable access to mainstream services for people with disability through
better systems and processes.

Co n su m er r esp o n se
Property NSW has mechanisms in place for its government agency clients to provide
feedback relating to base building issues via the Property NSW Maintain Portal at
https://propertynsw.thepsc.com/Login.aspx.
In 2016/17, the portal continued as the central service point for agency property
management issues. It allows government agency staff to log and track maintenance
requests online in real time for Property NSW-managed buildings (leased and owned). The
type of requests that can be submitted through this portal include:






building structure, walls, roof, floor, carpet
base airconditioning
fire control system
electrical and plumbing
grounds maintenance



WH&S includes hazards or incidents

Additionally, Property NSW responds daily to enquiries, complaints and compliments relating
to all entities via feedback@property.nsw.gov.au. Refer to
www.property.nsw.gov.au/contact-us for more ways to contact Property NSW.
Property NSW has ensured that issues through both channels are dealt with appropriately
and with a high degree of client satisfaction.
Property NSW also gauges client response to its service delivery through its annual client
survey, aimed at achieving superior customer service and enhancing its service delivery.

Risk m an ag em en t an d in su r an ce act iv it i es
As part of the Property and Advisory Group, Property NSW adopts the DFSI Risk and
Resilience Framework to manage its business and project risks. This framework has been
developed in alignment with:




NSW Treasury Policy Paper (TPP- 15-03): Internal Audit and Risk Management
Policy for NSW Public Sector
Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard (AS/NZS ISO31000:2009): Risk
Management Principles and Guidelines
other related acts, regulations, policies, standards or guidelines relating to work
health and safety, information security, business continuity management, fraud and
probity, financial internal controls certification, and legislation pertaining to Property
and Advisory Group entities.

Key achievements during 2016/17:




delivered Strategic Risk workshops and Operational Risk Workshops across the
Property and Advisory Group
developed Property and Advisory Group Enterprise Risk Management Guidelines
developed strategic risk and operational risk dashboards to provide consistent
reporting across the group.

Insurance
The Property and Advisory Group insurable risks were covered under the NSW
Government’s Treasury Managed Fund (TMF) for the following categories during the
2016/17 financial year:






workers’ compensation
legal - including liability classes like public liability, products liability, professional
indemnity, directors and officers liability
property - including buildings, plant, equipment, and consequential loss
motor vehicle
other miscellaneous losses, such as the cost of employee dishonesty and personal
accident and protection for overseas travel.

The main exposures that were not included were:





illegal activities
wear and tear, and inherent vice (Note: ‘inherent vice’ is an exclusion found in most
property insurance policies eliminating coverage if there is a hidden defect in a good
or property which causes or contributes to its deterioration, damage, or wastage)
pollution (not being sudden and accidental pollution).

Property and Advisory Group number of claims (2016/17)

Property
NSW
Workers’ comp

Place
Teacher
Management Housing
NSW
Authority

Waste Assets
Management
Corporation

Total

4

1

0

1

6

19

1

27

0

47

Motor vehicle

0

1

0

2

3

Liability

0

9

1

0

10

Miscellaneous

0

0

0

0

0

Property

Property and Advisory Group net incurred cost (2016/17)

Property
NSW

Place
Teacher
Management Housing
NSW
Authority

Waste Assets
Management
Corporation

Total

Workers’ comp

28,946

26,129

-

547

55,623

Property

395,372

20,000

183,811

-

599,184

Motor vehicle

-

5,284

-

6,174

11,458

Liability

-

255,860

5,000

-

260,860

Miscellaneous

-

-

-

-

-

All incurred claims and relevant costs were sourced from the TMF database. They are based on the claims lodged and relevant
assessment to date. The final costs and claim numbers may vary due to the timing of loss incurred, claims reported and the
outcome of negotiated settlement.

Property and Advisory Group Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)
The Audit and Risk Committee provides independent assistance to the following participating
entities by monitoring, reviewing and providing advice about their governance processes,
risk management and control framework, and their external accountability requirements:






Property NSW (PNSW)
Teacher Housing Authority (THA)
Waste Asset Management Corporation (WAMC)
Place Management NSW (PMNSW)
Luna Park Reserve Trust (LPRT).

The above participating entities have entered into a collaborative shared arrangement and
have established a shared Audit and Risk Committee in compliance with:



NSW Treasury Policy Paper (TPP15-03): Internal Audit and Risk Management Policy
for NSW Public Sector



NSW Treasury Policy Paper (TPP16-02): Guidance on Shared Arrangements and
Subcommittees for Audit and Risk Committees.

The committee met five times during the 2016/17 financial year.
DFSI, while is not a participating entity, has a special role in providing audit, risk and
secretariat services to the committee and the participating entities.
This shared arrangement aims to maintain an appropriate level of internal oversight for all
participating entities in assurance and independent advice, while minimising the associated
administration, financial costs and resources.
Internal Audit and Risk Management Attestation Statement for 2016/17 Financial Year

Digital Information Security Annual Attestation Statement 2016/17

Mu lt icu lt u r al Po licies an d Ser v ices Pr o g r am
The Property and Advisory Group has multicultural policies and service programs guided by
DFSI’s Diversity and Inclusion strategy, Aboriginal Workforce Strategy, Disability Inclusion
Action Plan and the Government Sector Employment Act 2013, which prioritises diversity in
the workforce. This year DFSI’s reporting themes are: improving outcomes for women,
services for humanitarian entrants, key performance indicators and evaluation results.

Wo r k Healt h an d Saf et y (WHS)
In 2016/17, the Property and Advisory Group continued to take a proactive approach in
managing the safety of all employees, other workers and visitors to its properties, sites and
activations.
With the amalgamation of business groups within the Department of Finance, Services and
Innovation (DFSI) to create the Property and Advisory Group, a cluster-wide safety
management system is being developed to ensure a consistent approach to the reporting
and management of safety incidents and activities.
Specific Property and Advisory Group WHS activities undertaken in 2016/17 include:








engaging a WHS consultant to review the existing WHS systems, activities and
processes across the group
developing a group WHS policy
implementing a group incident management procedure
undertaking preliminary stakeholder workshops to develop a group incident
management system (Integrum), which will be launched in late 2017
participating in the Harrington St Operational Readiness Working Group. The WHS
manager and committee members arranged inductions and resources for staff
members who had to temporarily relocate to 23 Bridge St in May while refurbishment
commenced on 66 Harrington St
assisting in the coordination of health and wellbeing initiatives such as the flu
vaccination program and provision of a mothers’ nursing room at Bligh St.

WHS incidents – Property NSW
The following number of incidents was reported during 2016/17:


34 staff Incidents.

There were no serious/notifiable incidents affecting staff.

WHS induction and training
Property and Advisory Group staff members were required to complete two WHS mandatory
courses:



Introduction to Health and Safety, and
WHS Due Diligence for managers.

As of 30 June, 2017 there was an 88 per cent course completion rate across the group.
WHS consultation
The WHS Consultative Committee has continued to be active in the management of WHS
issues. In October 2016, the former WHS Committee was relaunched as the Property and
Advisory Group WHS Committee and now comprises representatives from across the whole
group. In 2016/17 the committee completed eight site inductions.
The Property and Advisory Group WHS Committee employee representatives have been
active participants in discussions around risk management, emergency planning, inductions,
training, and health and wellbeing matters.

Wast e r ed u ct io n in it iat ives
Please refer to the Property and Advisory Group Annual Review 2016/17 for information
about Property NSW’s waste reduction initiatives under the NSW Government Resource
Efficiency Policy (GREP).

Paym en t o f acco u n t s
The table below highlights Property NSW’s account payment performance for 2016/17.

For all suppliers, the percentage of invoices paid on time for 2016/17 averaged 97 per cent
by value and 83 per cent by number (97 per cent and 95 per cent, respectively, in 2015/16).
During 2016/17, Property NSW, via an approved tender process, chose Jones Lang La Salle
(JLL) as the new outsourced property service provider to act on Property NSW's behalf. The
decision was also taken to outsource all "in-house" property-related systems, resulting in JLL
systems now being used in all of the agency’s property management.

Property NSW monitors the new system and looks forward to procedural improvements, with
JLL, to ensure all invoice payments are made according to the prescribed requirements. The
majority of payment delays experienced by Property NSW are process-related and JLL
requiring time to put the systems in place and adjust to government reporting requirements.
Payment delays also occurred due to the logistical difficulties in securing certifications on
services provided to properties which are spread across NSW. For 2017/18, Property NSW
will again set a target payment performance in excess of 95 per cent.
Out of the total number of invoices paid during 2016/17, 1.4 per cent (or 0.09 per cent by
value) were paid to small business suppliers. Of this, 70 per cent by number, and 59 per
cent by value, was paid on time. The invoice certification delays, described above, resulted
in Property NSW paying $32.53 in penalty interest to one small business supplier during
2016/17.

Cr ed it car d cer t if icat io n
In 2016/17, credit card usage within Property NSW was mainly limited to claimable workrelated travel expenses and expenditure for minor purchases where the use of credit cards is
a more efficient means of payment.
In accordance with Treasurer's Direction 205.01, credit card usage by officers of Property
NSW during the reporting period was in accordance with relevant Government policy,
Premier's Memoranda and Treasurer's Directions.
Property NSW has in place a corporate credit card policy that meets NSW Treasury
guidelines.

Pr o cu r em en t
The Property and Advisory Group, including Property NSW, under the Procurement Board
Direction - PBD2016-01 Approved procurement arrangements from July 2016, can rely upon
Place Management’s 2B procurement accreditation for the sourcing of goods, services and
construction to the value of $20 million. This is a result of an agreement that all divisions and
businesses under the group umbrella comply with the endorsed procurement process.
Previously, Place Management NSW underwent an extensive external assessment process
and has accordingly received Level 2B accreditation. This enables Place Management to
conduct its own procurement activities for contracts up to a value of $20 million, independent
of the NSW Procurement branch of the Office of Finance and Services.
In August 2017, Public Works Advisory (PWA), a division of the Property and Advisory
Group, was appointed as the lead division for the purposes of application and maintenance
of construction procurement accreditation and to be the lead agency for construction projects
across Property NSW.
PWA has construction accreditation which is unlimited in value.

Pu b lic in f o r m at io n
Public Interest Disclosure
As staff members are employees of DFSI, Property NSW has adopted and adhered to the
DFSI Fraud and Corruption Internal Reporting Policy. All staff members are advised of this
policy by means of the Code of Conduct and intranet access.
There were no public interest disclosures made by Property NSW officials for the period 1
July 2016 to 30 June 2017.
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 (PPIP Act)
The Privacy and Personal Information Protection (PPIP) Act 1998 contains 12 information
protection principles regulating the collection, use and disclosure of personal information by
NSW public sector agencies. These principles ensure that agencies collect personal
information for lawful purposes, and that such information is protected from misuse and
unauthorised release.
NSW Government agencies are required to prepare and implement a privacy management
plan in accordance with section 33(1) of the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act
1998.
Additional information about how Property NSW manages its obligations under the PPIP Act
is available at http://www.property.nsw.gov.au/government-property-nsw-privacy-statement.

Go ver n m en t in f o r m at io n
Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009
The Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 (GIPA Act) requires NSW
Government agencies to make mandatory disclosures of information, encourages proactive
releases of information and provides mechanisms for individuals to apply to access
government information.
More information on how to access department information is available at
https://www.finance.nsw.gov.au/accessing-ofs-information/how-can-i-access-ofs-information.
Statistical information relating to formal applications under the GIPA Act is provided in the
DFSI Annual Report Government Information (Public Access) statistics.
Review of proactive release program
Under section 7(3) of the GIPA Act, agencies must review their proactive release of
government information program at least once every 12 months.
Property NSW complies with this Act by proactively releasing information on its website
www.property.nsw.gov.au.

Exem p t io n s an d n il r ep o r t s
Property NSW is exempt from reporting on the following matters for the reasons outlined
below:
Reporting requirement
Disclosure of controlled entities

Disclosure of subsidiaries

Promotion

Reason for exemption
Property NSW does not control any entities of the kind
referred to in section 39 (1A) of the Public Finance and
Audit Act 1983.
Property NSW does not control or hold shares in any
subsidiaries within the meaning of the Corporations Act
2001 (Cth.).
There has been no overseas travel undertaken by
Property NSW employees and officers for the financial
year 2016/17.

Funds granted to Non-Government
Organisations

Property NSW did not make any grants to any nongovernment community organisations during the
reporting period.

Research and Development

No research and development activities were
undertaken during 2016-17.
Property NSW does not have any agreements with
Multicultural NSW under the Multicultural Act 2000.
All Property NSW investment powers are in
accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 4 of the Public
Authorities (Financial Arrangements) Act 1987.
However, all cash reserves are held in Treasury
Banking System (TBS) bank accounts.
Property NSW is not subject to determinations or
recommendations of the Independent Pricing and
Regulatory Tribunal of NSW.
Not applicable, as Property NSW does not have a level
of debt greater than $20 million.
Property NSW did not dispose any land with value
more than $5 million, except by way of public offering,
such as auction, Expression of Interest or tender
during 2016/17.

Agreements with Multicultural
NSW
Investment Performance

Implementation of Price
Determination
Liability management performance
Land Disposal

Access
Property NSW
Bligh House, Level 3, 4–6 Bligh Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 4081, Sydney NSW 2001
T: 02 9273 3800
www.property.nsw.gov.aualuation Services
1 Prince Albert Road, Queens Square, Sydney NSW 2001
PO Box 745, Bathurst NSW 2795
T: 1800 110 038
www.valuergenw.gov.au

